
 

 

Scrutiny Homes 
Sub-Committee 
Agenda 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Councillors: Leila Ben-Hassel (Chair), Joseph Lee (Vice-Chair), 

Kola Agboola, Adele Benson, Claire Bonham, Danielle Denton and 
Ellily Ponnuthurai 
 

 Reserve Members: Sue Bennett, Richard Chatterjee, Amy Foster, 
Humayun Kabir, Tamar Nwafor and Nikhil Sherine Thampi 
 

 
A meeting of the Scrutiny Homes Sub-Committee which you are hereby 
summoned to attend, will be held on Monday, 6 February 2023 at 6.30 pm in 
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Katharine Street, Croydon CR0 1NX  
 
Katherine Kerswell 
Chief Executive 
London Borough of Croydon 
Bernard Weatherill House 
8 Mint Walk, Croydon CR0 1EA 

Simon Trevaskis 
Senior Democratic Services & Governance 
Officer - Scrutiny 
simon.trevaskis@croydon.gov.uk  
www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings 
27 January 2023 

 
Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting, or you can view the 
webcast both live and after the meeting has completed at 
http://webcasting.croydon.gov.uk 
 
If you would like to record the meeting, we ask that you read the guidance on the 
recording of public meetings here before attending. 
 
The agenda papers for all Council meetings are available on the Council website 
www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings  
 
If you require any assistance, please contact Simon Trevaskis as detailed above.  
 

Public Document Pack

mailto:simon.trevaskis@croydon.gov.uk
http://webcasting.croydon.gov.uk/
https://democracy.croydon.gov.uk/documents/s20730/Recording%20Guidance.pdf
http://www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings


 

 

AGENDA – PART A 
  

1.   Apologies for absence  
 To receive any apologies for absence from any members of the 

Committee. 
  

2.   Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 14) 
 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 5 December 2022 as an 

accurate record. 
   

3.   Disclosures of Interest  
 Members are invited to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests 

(DPIs) and other registrable and non-registrable interests they may have 
in relation to any item(s) of business on today’s agenda. 
  

4.   Urgent Business (if any)  
 To receive notice of any business not on the agenda which in the 

opinion of the Chair, by reason of special circumstances, be considered 
as a matter of urgency. 
  

5.   Update on the Re-procurement of Repairs/Voids and Heating 
(Pages 15 - 38) 

 The Homes Sub-Committee is presented with a report updating on the 
Repairs & Voids and Heating procurement since the Cabinet decision in 
June 2022. 
  
The Sub-Committee is asked to note the content of the report.  
  

6.   Update on the Housing Revenue Account and Housing General 
Fund Budget (Pages 39 - 44) 

 The Homes Sub-Committee is with an overview of the Housing Revenue 
Account and General Fund budgets and is recommended to: - 

1.  to note the Housing Revenue Account P7 outturn position. 

2.  to note the Housing Revenue Account Business Plan key headlines. 

3.  to note the Housing General Fund budget. 

4.  to note the Housing General Fund P7 outturn position. 

5.  to consider its conclusions on the budget information provided, 
which will be submitted to the Scrutiny & Overview Committee 
meeting on 16 February 2023 as part of the wider Budget Scrutiny 
process.  



 

 

3

  
  

7.   Work Programme 2022/23 (Pages 45 - 48) 
 The Health & Social Care Sub-Committee is asked to consider whether 

any additions, amendments or changes are needed to the agreed work 
programme for the Sub-Committee in 2022/23.  
   

8.   Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 The following motion is to be moved and seconded where it is proposed 

to exclude the press and public from the remainder of a meeting: 
 
“That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information falling within those paragraphs indicated in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended.” 
 

PART B 
 
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Scrutiny Homes Sub-Committee 
 
 

Meeting held on Monday, 5 December 2022 at 6.30 pm in Council Chamber, Town Hall, 
Katharine Street, Croydon CR0 1NX 

 
MINUTES 

 
Present: 
 

Councillor Leila Ben-Hassel (Chair),Councillor Joseph Lee (Vice-Chair), 
Kola Agboola, Adele Benson, Claire Bonham, Danielle Denton and 
Ellily Ponnuthurai 

Also  
Present: 

Councillor Lynne Hale (Statutory Deputy Mayor and Cabinet Member for 
Homes) 

  
PART A 

  
1   
 

Apologies for absence 
 
There were no apologies for absence. 
  

2   
 

Disclosures of Interest 
 
There were no disclosures of interest. 
  

3   
 

Urgent Business (if any) 
 
The Chair asked about the significant mischarging of General Fund costs to 
the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) that had been highlighted in the Section 
114 notice issued by the Council on 22nd November 2022. The Corporate 
Director of Housing explained that there had been an overcharge to the HRA 
account for several years; the level of recharge to the HRA had been 
discovered to be higher than the normal when compared to similar boroughs 
and it had been found that this had been for services that should fall under the 
General Fund. A piece of work had been initiated to scrutinise what these 
recharges looked like and to date a figure of £9.5 million a year since 2019/20 
had been calculated. To rectify this, around £40 million would be put back into 
the HRA account, which would increase reserves although this would have a 
detrimental effect on the General Fund. 
  
The Chair asked if mischarging had potentially started earlier, and it was 
confirmed that this could be the case and would be investigated with the 
Section 151 officer. The Chair asked if this opened the Council to legal 
challenges and the Corporate Director for Housing explained that as the 
Council was pro-actively rectifying this it was unlikely. On whether there had 
been communication with tenants on this issue, the Corporate Director 
explained that the issue of recharging to the HRA had been raised by the 
Tenants and Leaseholders Panel, and that they had been advised that the 
situation was being looked at. The Cabinet Member for Homes explained that 
this was still an evolving situation, and the numbers were still under review as 

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 

 
 

years before 2019/20 were investigated. The Chair raised concerns that this 
had only been picked up as part of the ‘Opening the Books’ exercise. 
  

4   
 

Pre-Decision Scrutiny: Updating the Homelessness and Rough Sleeping 
Strategy 
 
The Sub-Committee considered a report set out on pages 5 to 18 of the 
agenda, which provided a Cabinet paper on the Council’s approach to 
revising the existing Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Action Plan for 
2023/2024, following guidance from the Department for Levelling Up, Housing 
and Communities (DHLUC), and for undertaking a comprehensive review of 
homelessness in the Borough in developing a three-year strategy from 
2024/2025. The Cabinet Member for Homes introduced the item. 
  
The Corporate Director for Housing explained that this was the same Strategy 
that had been consulted on in 2019 with an updated Action Plan; this course 
of action had been decided in collaboration with DHLUC while the Council 
worked on a new comprehensive Strategy. The Head of Temporary 
Accommodation explained that the Action Plan had been aligned to 
transformation work happening in the Housing department and would ensure 
that there was a solid base for the new Strategy that would be developed for 
adoption in 2024. 
  
Members asked whether joint bidding for a grant with Public Health 
addressing health issues, such as substance misuse which could be prevalent 
amongst those experiencing homelessness, had been successful. The 
Corporate Director of Housing responded that unfortunately this information 
was currently embargoed. Members asked about the budget for the Housing 
Needs Service and the Head of Temporary Accommodation explained that 
there was a standing General Fund budget, with a total could be provided 
upon request, but that the budget for temporary accommodation sat at around 
£20 million (including grant funding). 
  
On occupancy checks, the Head of Temporary Accommodation explained that 
these were not currently being undertaken due to capacity in the service; 
additional transformation funding had been bid for to ensure these begun as 
part of the Action Plan. Occupancy checks would help to establish who was 
living in which accommodation, ensure properties were not being sublet and 
provide an opportunity to conduct welfare checks. It was envisaged that 
occupancy checks would be annual, unless complaints or notification of 
changes in circumstances were received. The Chair asked what would 
happen should the tenants be found not to be occupying allocated properties; 
the Corporate Director of Housing explained that each case would need to be 
reviewed on its own merits. The Cabinet Member for Homes explained the 
high cost of Temporary and Emergency accommodation, and stated that 
having the right people in the right accommodation would lead to greater 
efficiencies in the service. Members asked about the possibility of outsourcing 
occupancy checks to address the lack of capacity in the service, and the 
Corporate Director of Housing responded that all options would be 
considered. 

Page 6



 

 
 

  
The Chair asked about the likelihood that the Homelessness Support Grant 
allocation for Croydon could reduce by up to 30% and whether this was a 
result of poor data and reporting or whether this was a national reduction. The 
Corporate Director for Housing explained that this was an issue all councils 
were facing and that DHLUC were aware that this was a worsening and acute 
issue in Croydon. No Grant allocation figures for the settlement were yet 
available, but this was being watched closely by officers. Members heard that 
all grants were being monitored to ensure that any possible additional funds 
could be secured. The Corporate Director for Housing explained that robust 
representations were being made to DHLUC in conjunction with London 
Councils, and that discussions with neighbouring boroughs about out of 
borough placements into Croydon were ongoing. 
  
The Chair asked about trends in homelessness in Croydon and how these 
compared to neighbouring boroughs; it was further asked if DHLUC 
recognised that this was trending up and whether there was a possibility that 
additional ad hoc funding could be directed to Croydon in light of this. The 
Corporate Director for Housing explained that the case for additional funding 
was being made to DHLUC and that Croydon was facing issues more similar 
to that of inner London boroughs. It was recognised that more work needed to 
be done on assessing homelessness trends in the borough, and that Croydon 
had historically been more likely to accept homelessness duties than other 
boroughs. 
  
Members asked why Croydon was considered a cost-effective borough for 
homelessness placements by other authorities and, with the cost-of-living 
crisis increasing demand, how this could be reduced to increase capacity for 
Croydon placements. The Head of Temporary Accommodation explained that 
demand would likely increase and that work to improve data quality and 
capture was ongoing to help identify trends and generate demand forecasts. 
Members heard there was little Croydon could do to stop other authorities 
placing into the borough, and it was thought these authorities were 
undercutting Croydon for placements with this still being cheaper than in-
borough placements for inner London councils. The Head of Temporary 
Accommodation stated that conversations had started with these authorities 
to gain a clear picture of the situation. The Corporate Director of Housing 
explained that the Chief Executive would be writing to their counterparts 
across London about placements into Croydon to request increased 
transparency and changes to practices. 
  
The Sub-Committee asked if Croydon residents were being placed outside of 
borough, and if so, how were they being supported. The Corporate Director 
for Housing explained that 1684 households had been placed out of borough, 
but that this was low compared to similar councils; the borough that the 
placement was in were responsible for providing support to these individuals. 
Members asked if there were homeless people in Croydon who did not want 
to be in the borough long term, and if so, how was this being measured. The 
Corporate Director of Housing acknowledged that there was a tendency to 
keep people in the borough, even if they wanted to be elsewhere, and that 

Page 7



 

 
 

this needed to be addressed. The Head of Temporary Accommodation 
explained that the current focus of the service was ensuring placements 
happened and that greater training needed to take place on prevention to 
ensure staff could facilitate the needs of clients, house them with their support 
networks and provide quality advice. The Chair agreed that empowering staff 
to support clients through proper training was incredibly important; the 
Corporate Director of Housing agreed emphatically and explained that this 
approach was embedded in the restructure of the Housing Needs service.  
  
The Chair asked about the use of reserves for homelessness in the current 
Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) to meet increased demand. The 
Corporate Director of Housing explained that reserves would be used in this 
year, which could lead to problems in future years. The new Strategy that 
would be developed would focus on statutory provision with any additional 
services needing to be reviewed to see if these would still be deliverable. 
  
Members asked about plans to improve partnerships with Housing 
Associations with private sector landlords increasingly leaving the market. The 
Cabinet Member for Homes explained that they were very keen to build these 
partnerships, and the Corporate Director of Housing agreed and explained 
that these relationships needed to be developed. It was stated that it was 
likely there were Housing Associations struggling to sell properties who would 
be keen to work with the Council. The Sub-Committee encouraged the 
Cabinet Member and Corporate Director to approach all landlords and 
available accommodation to ensure no opportunities were missed. The 
Corporate Director of Housing and Head of Temporary accommodation 
agreed and stated that no approach was off the table. 
  
The Sub-Committee asked about Croydon’s funding settlement as an outer 
London borough when much of its need was more aligned with that of an 
inner London borough. The Corporate Director of Housing explained that this 
was a part of ongoing conversations with DHLUC and would continue to be 
raised in discussions. 
  
Members asked about contracts for Temporary Accommodation providers and 
the Head of Temporary Accommodation explained that the Dynamic 
Purchasing System (DPS) would ensure all providers would be under a 
contract framework, which would make the responsibilities of the provider 
clear and ensure value for money was achieved. The Chair asked why DPS 
was still not in place as the implementation date had moved back several 
times. Members heard that this was due to procurement deadlines and the 
value of the contract, but the timeline for this to be in place was now June 
2023. The Corporate Director of Housing explained that the resource to 
develop and implement DPS had not been put in place previously, but this 
had now been done and progress was being monitored monthly – the latest 
possible implementation date was thought to be September 2023. The Sub-
Committee highlighted that there were other contract frameworks that could 
be used in the period before the DPS was implemented. 
  

Page 8



 

 
 

The Sub-Committee asked about clients who refused formal offers of help for 
street homelessness or temporary accommodation. The Head of Temporary 
Accommodation explained that it was important that offers of accommodation 
were suitable and approximate to support networks. Members heard that 
where offers of help with street homelessness were refused, cases were 
assessed on a case-by-case basis to ensure support needs were being met 
and any referrals that needed to be made took place; the importance of 
constant engagement with clients was highlighted. Members heard that where 
all of this had taken place, only then would enforcement action take place with 
it being the only course of action left. The Chair highlighted additional needs 
that might lead clients to refuse placements other than mental illness or 
substance misuse. 
  
Members asked for a more detailed version of the Action Plan listing the 
overall timeline, key milestones, deliverables for each workstream and 
interdependencies and associated risks. The Corporate Director explained 
that there were detailed plans under each of the Action Plan headings which 
could be provided. It was explained that much of the Action Plan was 
focussed on developing a better understanding of data and performance. 
The Sub-Committee asked about hiring additional resource to maximise 
income through bidding for as many grants as possible, and the Corporate 
Director explained that this would be taken into consideration. 
  
The Chair asked about the £135,000 that would be used to develop the new 
Strategy. The Corporate Director of Housing explained that this would be 
used to bring in expertise and experience for 15 months either by a fixed term 
contract or by consultancy. 
  
Conclusions 
  

1.            The Sub-Committee concluded that the department were taking the 
right approach by not rushing into producing a new Strategy and 
extending the current strategy with an updated Action Plan and 
members were reassured that DHLUC were on board with the 
approach. 

  
2.            Members were encouraged that additional resource and expertise 

was being sought to address substance misuse. 
  
3.            The Sub-Committee concluded that trend data for homelessness 

should be included in future reports for Croydon and comparable 
boroughs. 

  
4.            The Sub-Committee concluded, should central government grant 

funding for Croydon be reduced, that the plan to address this is 
shared with Members. 

  
5.            The Sub-Committee were of the view that under occupancy of 

registered social landlord properties should be investigated to see if 

Page 9



 

 
 

this could provide additional Temporary and Emergency 
Accommodation capacity. 

  
6.            The Sub-Committee concluded/ that officers consider historic policy 

data concerning ‘FairBnB’ in Croydon and that this was reviewed 
and considered as an additional housing provision pipeline under 
the Action Plan Housing Provision workstream. 

  
Information Requests 
  

1.            The Sub-Committee requested an update on the outcome of the 
grant funding application concerning substance misuse before the 
end of December 2022. 

  
2.            The Sub-Committee concluded that budgets for individual services 

under the Housing department was provided by the next meeting. 
  
3.            The Sub-Committee concluded that procurement strategy for the 

Dynamic Purchasing System be provided to Members, including 
key milestones/gateways. 

  
4.            The Sub-Committee concluded that a training plan for staff in the 

Housing Department should be provided by the next meeting. 
  
5.            The Sub-Committee concluded that an update concerning Sycamore 

House and the Winter Plan be provided before the end of 
December 2022. 

  
Recommendations 
  

1.            The Sub-Committee recommended that the Action Plan is updated 
to show overall timeline of the action plan, key milestones, 
deliverables for each workstream and that interdependencies and 
associated risks be highlighted and included in the action plan. 

  
2.            The Sub-Committee recommended that the Action Plan is updated 

to show that the Occupancy Checks workstream covered both the 
remit of ensuring the accommodation is occupied by homeless 
households placed by the Council to meet housing duty and of 
monitoring how long new clients were staying in Temporary or 
Emergency accommodation (to be updated by next 6th Feb Sub-
Committee meeting and updated version to be sent to committee 
members). 

  
3.            The Sub-Committee recommended that Occupancy Checks 

proactively looked to see that accommodation was still meeting the 
needs of clients that had been placed there and that this was 
supported by appropriate staff training to empower them to 
anticipate and identify changing needs (e.g. 
pregnancies/overcrowding, disability). 

Page 10



 

 
 

  
4.            The Sub-Committee recommended that suitable policy or guidance 

is in place once Occupancy Checks started, to ensure those who 
had left accommodation were not penalised if they had done so for 
legitimate reasons. 

  
5.            The Sub-Committee recommended that the Executive Mayor write to 

the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities to 
lobby for additional homelessness funding for Croydon, recognising 
the homelessness situation is acute in Croydon on a par with inner 
London boroughs. 

  
5   
 

Pre-Decision Scrutiny: Distribution of the Household Support Fund 
Grant 
 
The Sub-Committee considered a report set out in the supplementary agenda, 
which provided a Cabinet paper on the Council’s approach to the distribution 
of the Household Support Fund of £3,013,689.49, as allocated by the 
Department of Work & Pensions (DWP), covering the period 1st October 2022 
to 31st March 2023. The Director of Housing introduced the item. 
  
Members asked how the Fund would be publicised and the Corporate Director 
of Housing explained that this would be done through the website, directly 
targeted communications, the voluntary sector, schools and partner 
organisations. The Vice-Chair suggested that Councillors were consulted on 
the best ways to reach residents. The Chair requested that previous funding 
round distributions were mapped and the Head of Temporary Accommodation 
explained that work to analyse and map this data was still ongoing. 
  
The Sub-Committee asked whether this could be delivered in full given that 
the grant was already in the third month of the eligibility timeframe, why this 
had not been delivered earlier, and whether the allocation period would be 
extended beyond April 2023. The Corporate Director of Housing explained 
that this Grant had been a recent announcement from government, with 
guidance on distribution only made available in November 2022. Members 
heard that it was likely that all of the money would be spent in the period and 
it was unlikely that the DWP would extend the deadline. The Head of 
Temporary Accommodation explained that learning from previous rounds 
would be incorporated including targeting residents through schools, directly 
targeted communications and inter-departmental collaboration. 
  
Members asked about risk from the Fund, if there was additional resource that 
could be drawn on should it be spent early, and what would be done should 
the DWP fail to reimburse the Council. The Corporate Director of Housing 
explained there was no risk to the General Fund and that a single point of 
contact had been established across the directorates; this was the third 
funding round of this Grant and the Council had good experience of ensuring 
that there were strong audit trails and recovery from the DWP. The Sub-
Committee asked whether direct applications were allocated on a first-come-
first-serve basis and about the risks of fraud. The Corporate Director of 

Page 11



 

 
 

Housing explained the importance of audit trails in ensuring a full return of 
funds from the DWP and that all claims needed to be fully evidenced. The 
Head of Temporary Accommodation stated that applications for the fund 
would be on a first-come-first-serve basis but that all applications would be 
fairly assessed against criteria. 
  
The Chair asked about how the allocation criteria had been decided. The 
Corporate Director of Housing stated that this would be better explained in the 
press release and information sent to Members on the fund; households 
would be directly targeted on a proactive basis, including those paying for 
energy through service charges. The Head of Temporary Accommodation 
explained that the guidance on the fund from the DWP was clear and this 
would be provided in future communications. 
  
Members asked how long it took from a direct application being made to the 
payment being received. The Head of Temporary Accommodation explained 
that the Discretionary Housing Support team would be processing 
applications with a timeframe of two weeks for direct applications but that 
residents targeted through other directorates’ databases would be paid 
directly which should ensure this was paid quicker. The Sub-Committee 
raised concerns that two weeks was a long time for the most vulnerable 
residents, and it was explained that direct applications were a small amount of 
the funding total with the majority of the fund being paid faster. 
  
The Chair asked how learning from previous rounds had informed the strategy 
for this round of Grant funding. The Corporate Director of Housing explained 
that having a central point of contact had been a major learning, and that 
keeping good track of allocations was also extremely important. The Chair 
asked if there was a monitoring framework in place. The Head of Temporary 
Accommodation explained that grant conditions in the second round had been 
very specific, but these conditions had been largely removed in this round to 
focus on fuel poverty, food and essentials with the discretionary element 
limited in favour of targeted support. The Corporate Director of Housing 
explained that monitoring data could be provided at a later date. 
  
Conclusions 
  
The Sub-Committee requested that simplified information on grant eligibility 
be provided to Members and residents. 
  
The Sub-Committee concluded that Members should be involved in helping to 
identify possible allocations for the Fund. 
  
The Sub-Committee thanked officers for their hard work in getting the Fund 
into place in good time and under challenging conditions considering the late 
issuing of government instructions on the distribution of the Household 
Support Grant. 
  
Information Requests 
  

Page 12



 

 
 

The Sub-Committee concluded that an update be provided on how direct 
applications to the Fund would be promoted. 
  
The Sub-Committee requested that the timeframe for payments reaching 
bank accounts from the point of direct application be provided. 
  
Recommendations 
  

1. Members recommended that publicity be clear on the criteria and 
exceptions relating to the distribution of the Discretionary part of the 
fund and to consider using of social media advertising (including 
Facebook paid ads) to proactively publicise the Fund. It was further 
recommended that all councillors were provided with the information in 
a timely manner so they can promote through community networks and 
other social media channels incl. Next Door. (Chair and Vice-Chair to 
be updated on communication of the grant before Christmas break 
2022) 

  
2. The Sub-Committee recommended that a provision for emergency 

situations be investigated for the discretionary element of the Fund. 
This could be in the form of faster processing of the grant (days instead 
of a two week turnaround) and/or vouchers. (Chair and Vice Chair to 
be updated on feasibility before the Christmas break 2022) 

  
  

6   
 

Pre-Decision Scrutiny: Report by the Monitoring Officer under section 5A 
of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 - Finding of Fault with 
Maladministration and Injustice 
 
The Sub-Committee considered a report set out on pages 19 to 38 of the 
agenda, which provided a Cabinet paper on the public interest report dated 23 
June 2022 and the recommendations made by the Local Government & 
Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) in relation to Croydon Council. The 
Director of Housing introduced the item. 
  
Members commented that the council had been fortunate that this case had 
been received by the Ombudsman and had not been the subject of a Judicial 
Review. The Chair asked if the risk of legal challenge from similar cases had 
been assessed and was informed that more cases were already in progress. 
The Corporate Director of Housing explained that accommodation suitability 
was being reviewed to ensure that legal risk to the council was minimised. 
The Head of Temporary Accommodation informed the Sub-Committee that 
placements into shared accommodation were also being reviewed to ensure 
there were not legal risks from these stays exceeding six weeks. 
  
Members commented on casework where they were aware of residents 
submitting proper paperwork to notify the council of changes in circumstances 
where these had not been responded to. 
  
Information Request 

Page 13



 

 
 

  
The Sub-Committee requested that an update be provided on the current 
legal exposure of the Council to similar cases. 
  
  

7   
 

Work Programme 2022/23 
 
The Chair requested that there was an update on Temporary and Emergency 
Accommodation Budgets at the next meeting. 
  
The Chair requested information on damp and mould in properties in the 
borough in response to the planned February 2023 Cabinet paper on the 
Council’s approach to damp and mould and the case publicised in the national 
press. The Corporate Director of Housing explained that they would be happy 
to provide their response to the Housing Secretary’s request for local 
authorities to submit details of how they plan to tackle damp and mould for 
social landlords. The Sub-Committee heard that the council were already alert 
to these issues following the situation at Regina Road and that the response 
had summarised Croydon’s current position. Members heard that the Director 
of Sustainable Communities, Regenerations & Economic Recovery had also 
provided a response covering private landlords. 
  
The Chair asked the Cabinet Member for Homes if a damp and mould 
strategy was being developed and heard that this would be the case. The 
Corporate Director explained that a working group would be set up to develop 
this using an assessment on the current position based on the Housing 
Ombudsman framework. 
  
The Chair explained that they would be requesting a briefing to update the 
Sub-Committee on the Responsive Repairs Contract. 
 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 9.30 pm 
 

 
Signed:   

Date:   

 

Page 14



 

 

LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON 
REPORT: 
 

Homes Sub Committee 
6th February 2022 

 
REPORT TITLE: 
 

Update on the re-procurement of repairs/voids and Heating 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 
 

Susmita Sen – Corporate Director for Housing 
Stephen Tate – Director of Housing Estates and Improvements 

PERSON LEADING 
AT THE SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 
MEETING 

Stephen Tate – Director of Housing Estates & Improvements 

PUBLIC/EXEMPT 
 

Public 

ORIGIN OF ITEM 
 

The Council’s improvement work on its Housing Service has been 
prioritised as a key area for scrutiny. This paper provides an update 
on the repairs/void and heating procurements.  
 

BRIEF FOR THE 
COMMITTEE  

The Scrutiny & Overview Committee is asked: 
 
1. To note the content of the report 
  

1 SUMMARY OF REPORT 

1.1 The purpose of the report is to provide an update of the Repairs & Voids and 
Heating procurement since the Cabinet decision in June 2023. 

2 BACKGROUND AND DETAILS 

2.1 The Council is procuring new contracts to replace the current service which is 
due to end at the end of July 2023. To mitigate the risk of appointing a single 
provider the Council is proposing to split the contract up into four parts as 
follows:  

• Contact Centre – to be insourced  

• Area 1 Responsive repairs excluding gas  

• Area 2 Responsive repairs excluding gas  

• Heating related services.    

2.2 The Contracts will be initially let for 6 years and 8 months; with a total contract 
duration of 10 years and 8 months.  As part of the scope of the gas 
procurement it is being proposed to extend the scope of gas boiler 
installations to include the planned programme. Incorporation of planned 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



 

 

domestic boiler replacements into the servicing and repairs contract is the 
industry standard as it ensures single point responsibility, consistency of 
product and installation and transfers responsibility and cost of maintenance 
to the party installing the boilers.  

2.3 The Scrutiny Committee met in June 2022 to evaluate the work undertaken in 
preparation for the re-procurement of the Responsive Repairs Contract.  The 
committee were informed by the views of the residents, the feedback of which 
have been incorporated into this procurement.    

Resident Engagement 

2.4 Croydon is committed to working with our tenants and leaseholders to ensure 
they have opportunities to be involved in and influence policies, decisions, 
monitoring performance and developing service standards in the housing 
service.  

2.5 Listening to residents about their views and priorities for a high performing 
repairs service that provides value for money sits at the heart of our approach 
to procuring a new provider and monitoring their performance in delivering the 
service. This paper sets out how we will continue to work with Croydon 
tenants, leaseholders and freeholders throughout the process to ensure that 
their objectives and aspirations are incorporated in the design, procurement 
and monitoring of our new repair’s provider. 

2.6 The following steps were agreed: 

• A broader group of residents will be recruited to support the tender 
evaluation stage 

• A working group will be established to ensure the tender documents 
reflected and addressed what the residents told us they wanted from a 
new repairs service. 

• Support and training to be provided for all residents involved in the 
tendering process. 

• A survey was carried out to capture the views of the resident. 

1.7. Training was provided for residents in advance of the procurement and were 
key part of scoring all evaluations at all stages.  This included a specific 
resident session with the contractors at the negotiation stages.  See appendix 
1 

 

 

Page 16



 

 

3 Key Procurement Stages – Repairs and voids 

3.1 The 2 Contracts being procured cover day to day responsive repairs and void 
works in 2 distinct areas: 

• Lot 1- the majority of the borough covering approximately 70% of the 
stock 

• Lot 2- covering New Addington, Fieldway, Shrublands and surrounding 
areas, approximately 30% of the stock. 

3.2. The procurement is being carried out using the Competitive Procedure with 
Negotiation Route (CPN) where following a pre-qualification and shortlisting 
process initial tenders are submitted and evaluated. A further shortlisting 
exercise typically takes place reducing the number of Bidders to 3, and then a 
negotiation takes place with shortlisted Bidders, tender documentation is 
modified, and final tenders are sought. 

Pre-Qualification 

3.3. The Contract Notice which included all Pre-Qualification information was 
issued on 4th July 2022 with a return date of 4th August 2022. Submissions 
were received from 6 bidders in Lot 1 and 10 bidders in Lot 2. 

3.4. On receipt, the financial standing of all the Contractors were evaluated in 
accordance with the criteria set out within the Pre-Qualification 
documentation. Two of the Contractors had insufficient turnover allied with 
their ‘health score’ under the Companywatch rating to qualify.  As a result of 
this evaluation two Contractors submissions were non-compliant and not 
considered further. 

3.5. Initially another Contractor was omitted based upon their financial standing 
but following an informal challenge and submission of further information they 
were reinstated. 

3.6. Submissions were evaluated during August/September by Council Officers, 
specialists and residents. Within the Contract Notice a minimum of 5 
contractors could be shortlisted for Lot 1 and 8 for Lot 2. 

3.7. Following evaluation, 5 bidders were shortlisted for Lot 1 and 7 for Lot 2 

Invitation to Submit Initial Tenders (ISIT) 

3.8. Initial tenders were issued to the above on 30th August 2022 in accordance 
with the programme.  

3.9. The ISIT pack contained the following key documents: 

Page 17



 

 

• The ISIT and response document including qualitative questions and 
evaluation weighting 

• Repairs and property data  

• Term Brief (Specification) including IT requirements 

• Price Framework, Price Schedule, and associated information 

• KPI Framework and Schedule 

• Quality questions 

• Form of contract 

• Policy and information documents 

3.10 Several bidders declined to tender or withdrew from the tender process during 
the tender period. The bidders and the reasons provided are set out below: 

Lot(s) Reason 

Lot 1 and 2 

Withdrew – suggested that have not ‘seen’ 
notifications on procurement portal and 
would therefore require major extension of 
time to prepare a tender. 

Lot 1 Withdrew – citing internal gateway process 
and governance issues. 

Lot 2 Declined to bid – no reason provided 

Lot 2 Declined to bid citing limited bidding 
resources and concerns regarding TUPE. 

3.11. A number of clarifications were received during the tender period and 
responses were issued to all bidders. 

3.12. Initial tenders were received in accordance with the programme and scored by 
panels of partners including residents. The quality/price evaluation ratio is 
60/40. 

3.13. The commercial offers received at the initial stage suggest that final tenders 
will be within budget expectations. 

3.14. In accordance with the Contract Notice the top 3 organisations for each Lot 
were invited to negotiation. 

3.15. While 1 Contractor is bidding for both Lots, they cannot be awarded both Lots. 
In the event they are successful on Lot 1, either one of the other bidders will 
be awarded the contract subject to Council approval. 

Page 18



 

 

Negotiation 

3.16. Formal negotiations have concluded and were primarily held face to face with 
some sessions via Teams. Residents had a separate dedicated session with 
each Bidder via Teams where we discussed Social Value and Commercial 
Aspects of the Contract. 

3.17. The negotiations appear to have been productive and should reduce risk and 
uncertainty for both Contractors and the Council resulting in more bespoke 
tenders. 

3.18. While the performance of the Contractors in negotiation was variable the 
Officers felt they were all capable of delivering the required service. 

Points of clarification 

3.19. During the negotiation stage a number of points of clarification were raised.  
These have been highlighted below. 

3.20. Further and better information on repairs data - The move to an Average 
Order Value (AOV) pricing model from a Price per Property (PPP) model 
necessitates provision of substantial amounts of historical data. 

3.21. During negotiation it became clear that the calculations provided within the 
initial tender documentation could be misinterpreted and the volumes of AOV 
jobs appeared low. We have re-visited the data and recalculated volumes of 
both AOV jobs and non AOV jobs. 

3.22. The revised pricing documentation should more accurately reflect work 
content and avoid disputes during the early stages of the contract. 

3.23. Recognition of different pricing for disrepair and backlog work (WIP) - Within 
the initial tender documentation disrepair work was priced within the general 
repair work and contractors therefore provided ‘blended rates’ covering both 
disrepair and non-disrepair work. 

3.24. It became clear during negotiations that separation of disrepair work from 
general repair would provide pricing that more accurately reflect the service 
levels required. 

3.25. At commencement of the contract there is likely to be a higher level of backlog 
work than would usually be acceptable as Axis withdraw from delivery. 
Reducing this quickly is a priority for the Council and will require additional 
resources from the Contractor that will not be necessary over the long term. 

Page 19



 

 

3.26. We have therefore included a facility for Contractors to price separately this 
backlog work together with a regime to ensure that it is cleared within 4 
months from commencement.  

3.27. Any backlog work relating to the PPP will be deducted from amounts due to 
Axis. 

3.28. Further and better TUPE information from Axis - During negotiations, 
Contractors asked if the Council could request further information relating to 
those employees that may transfer to the new Contractor. Information 
requested included any proposed salary rises or bonuses between now and 
commencement and if there are any historical claims regarding health issues. 

3.29. The Council is requesting this information from Axis to provide to Bidders. 

3.30. Clarity of requirements around co-location of Contractor’s staff within the 
Council premises - Discussions with Contractors during negotiation clarified 
the optimum solution with regards to co-location. Contractors generally saw 
potential benefits both commercially and operationally in sharing premises 
with the Council.  

3.31. The Council have decided to provide a total of 14 desks free of charge to the 
Lot 1 and 2 Contractors within Bernard Weatherill House. While charging for 
the space was considered it would simply be re-charged back to the Council 
through the pricing model. 

3.32. Refinement of Performance measures for Voids and Repairs to ensure clarity 
of Council’s right to make deductions - In negotiation all contractors did not 
welcome deductions for poor performance but understood why such 
provisions would be made. They also highlighted that clarity on how such 
deductions would be made was necessary to avoid disputes. In light of the 
negotiations the Council have re-visited the wording in the contract documents 
to ensure that the basis of such deductions is entirely clear. The Council felt 
that it was important to have a contract with penalties. 

3.33. Modifications to Social Value Requirements - A number of modifications of the 
Social Value requirements have resulted from the negotiations. Specifically: 

• An emphasis upon the contractual nature of any Social Value 
Commitments 

• Reference to the Mayor’s Business Plan and report to Cabinet dated 22 
June 2022 

• An emphasis on working with other Providers to maximise benefits from 
collaborative working 

Page 20



 

 

• Clarification that Social Value requirements will cascade down the 
Supply Chain and be required from Sub-Contractors and Suppliers 

• Recognition of the current Cost of Living crisis and inclusion of Social 
Value measures to address this 

3.34. Out of Hours Call Centre - During negotiation it became apparent that the 
major contractors bidding for Lot 1 operate their own out of hours call centre 
to deliver works for Clients.  The cost of this is included in the tender as the 
taking of calls and allocation of work is required whether the Client operates 
an out of hours call centre or not. The arrangements that are made during 
normal working hours are not applicable as virtually all out of hours calls are 
emergencies. 

3.35. In discussion the Lot 1 Contractors stated they would be willing to provide an 
out of hours call centre for both Lot 2 and the heating contract, and the costs 
appear competitive in particular as the call centre costs for Lot 1 are included 
whoever answers residents calls.  

3.36. The Lot 1 contractors will therefore be asked to price as an option the 
operation of an out of hours call centre for Lots 1, 2 and the heating contract. 

3.37. ICT integration - Implementation of the contractors ICT with the Council’s new 
NEC system is included within the tendered prices. However, there is a risk 
that NEC will not be operational by the time the contract is awarded; as a 
fallback position the contractors are being asked to provide an optional price 
for integration of the ICT systems if NEC is not operational.  We must have 
assurance of this in the final bid. 

3.38. Pricing evaluation - At initial tender stage the contractors’ prices were 
evaluated on the basis of their year 1 tender. 

3.39. Negotiations highlighted that some of the one-off costs including mobilisation 
and risk pricing could influence price evaluation more significantly than 
intended. This has been exacerbated by some of the other changes 
referenced above. 

3.40. In view of the above multipliers will be applied to the tendered rates to reflect 
the Council’s liability and the contract period with recurring costs adjusted to 
reflect 6 years 8 months costs (the initial contract period) and one off costs 
included as tendered, This will ensure all elements are weighted more 
accurately. 

 

 

Page 21



 

 

Final Tender Stage 

3.41. The final Tender stage started on 12th December 2022.  Bids were submitted 
by 16th January 2023 and the evaluation of the bids started on 17th January 
2023. 

See Appendix 2 – Scoring process 

4. Heating Servicing Repair & Replacement 

4.1 The Heating Servicing Repair & Replacement Contract is a single contract 
covering the whole Borough that comprises replacement, repairs and 
servicing of domestic boilers and servicing and repairs of communal boilers. 

4.2 The procurement is being carried out using the Restricted Procedure where 
tenders are submitted and evaluated following a Pre-Qualification process and 
the successful Bidder is appointed. 

Pre-Qualification 

4.3 Following the publication of a Contract Notice on 5th August 2022 
submissions were received from 13 Contractors on 5th September in 
accordance with the timetable. 

4.4 On receipt, compliance and completeness checks were carried out by the 
Council’s procurement team. 1 had not returned a submission, just a copy of 
their Public Liability Insurance certificate and they were therefore rejected 
from the evaluation process. 

4.5 The Council’s finance function evaluated the 12 compliant submissions 
received. all have passed the initial financial review following discussions 
regarding the surety they are able to provide. 

Final Tender Stage 

4.6 6 submissions were taken through to the final stage and were evaluated 
during September 2022 by panels of Partners including residents. They were 
invited to submit tenders on 14th October 2022 with a Tender return date of 
21st November 2022. The tender return date was subsequently extended to 
28th November 2022 due to issues in obtaining TUPE data from an incumbent 
Contractor.  This delay has not impacted upon the overall timetable. 

4.7 During the tender period 1 Contractor withdrew from the competition citing 
insufficient in-house resource to bid. 

4.8 Tenders were received on 28th November 2022 and have been evaluated by 
panels of Partners including residents.  

Page 22



 

 

4.9 The outcome of the evaluation is currently being drafted for submission. 

See Appendix 2 – Scoring process 

5. Housing Responsive Repairs Contact Centre 

5.1. The contact centre will be in-sourced to allow the council greater control over 
service delivery and provide an improved customer experience to the council’s 
residents. 

5.2. We are aiming to have a multi-channelled contact approach to suit the 
residents requirements. 

5.3. The in-sourced contact centre will be operational 08:00 – 18:00 Monday to 
Friday. Out of hours will continue to be outsourced and will cover evenings, 
weekends, and Bank Holidays. 

5.4. Out of hours is covered further in ‘negotiation’ section, and it is anticipated 
that the successful Lot 1 bidder will provide this service, allowing for a cost-
effective solution for the council. 

5.5. Contact centre personnel will transfer to the council via TUPE with an 
estimated date to transfer in the early part of the new financial year. This 
allows a phased migration approach, to maintain service delivery during a 
significant period of change for the service, and to reduce the risks associated 
with a ‘big-bang’ approach. 

5.6. Whilst this is being transferred over as a Repairs Contact Centre, we will be 
looking at future opportunities for the Team to answer other Housing queries 
beyond Repairs.  

 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Resident Involvement

The Residents were a 
key part of the 

Procurement process

They played a pivotal 
role in the shaping of 

the Tender documents 
and in the final 

outcome of the process

P
age 25



Learning 
from current 
contract

Key lessons learnt from the current contract has been developed following discussion with 
residents, members, staff and from our market advisor, Echelon.  These have helped shape this 
procurement and will influence how the contract is managed.  Key areas are:

Resident contact – all contact currently is managed through Axis, meaning the Council isn’t 
sighted immediately of any issues.

Contract number – there are pros and cons to having a single or multiple contracts.  Having 
more than one contract can provide additional resilience

Contract pricing model – all pricing models can drive different types of contractor behaviour 
that needs to be managed through effective contract management.  The PPP/PPV should 
incentivise first time fix but also can incentivise spending less per property 

Stronger contract management – contract management needs to be tightened 

Better use of data – better use of data drives delivery of the responsive repairs contact, 
informs future cyclical and capital programs

Review of the back office – the last restructure in the back office was undertaken in 2013 and 
is now out of date and not up to date with current best practise.

P
age 26



Themes 
from 
Resident 
Engagement

To be part of procurement exercise and involved 
in contract management of the new contractor

Residents would prefer to make repairs requests 
to the Council rather than a contractor.

Not to put ‘all eggs into one basket’ to have 
more than one contractor

To encourage local labour and local supply 
chains

Residents understood the pricing model and the 
rational

P
age 27



Residents 
also raised:

To be able to make an appointment at first point of 
contact at a time that suits the resident. 

A contractor that arrives at the appointed time or if 
there is going to be a delay to inform the resident 
and provide an alternative appointment.

Contractors to be skilled, competent, polite and 
professional operatives. 

To fix the problem on the first visit but accept this 
cannot always be achieved and where this is not 
possible to expedite the repair in a reasonable time.

To provide a good quality, value for money service.

P
age 28



Housing Repairs & Voids and Heating Contracts

28-Jul-22 Online meeting with repairs procurement group regarding repairs policy and minimum lettable standards.  
Looked at wording of the documents and made adjustments so reads more clearly from a resident 
perspective and to ensure clarity.

01-Aug-22 Repairs SQ evaluator training for panel members involved in scoring the bids submitted by potential repairs 
contractors. Online training session to prepare residents for scoring the submitted bids.

4-9 Aug 22 Repairs SQ evaluation period – panel members scored the submitted bids in their own time according to 
given criteria. Only looking at the question around resident engagement and social value.

10-Aug-22 Repairs SQ moderation session. Resident scorers met to discuss given scores and reach consensus on each.

15-Aug-22 Online presentation of repairs reprocurement survey findings and also further discussion with panel 
members on minimum lettable standards

24-Aug-22 Gas SQ evaluator training. Online training for panel members who will score the bids submitted by potential 
gas contractors. Residents taken through process, scoring criteria, etc

31 Aug- 18 Sept 22 Gas evaluation period. Resident evaluators went through bids and scored according to given criteria.

19-Sep-22 Gas SQ Moderation session at BWH.  Resident evaluators attended moderation session at BWH to discuss 
scoring and to reach consensus on the score for each contractor.

6-19 Oct 22 ISIT scoring period – panel members scored submitted bids in their own time based on agreed criteria.

10-Oct-22
Panel members completed ISIT evaluator training in preparation for scoring bids from contractors who 
successfully came through selection questionnaire stage. Scoring re social value and resident engagement. 
Worth ¼ of the score. They look at set questions and score based on set criteria. Had to read through 
responses from all bidders. Time consuming. Looking at what bidders are offering to do.

19-Oct-22 ISIT moderation at BWH – resident evaluators attend moderation session at BWH to discuss scores and reach 
consensus.

08-Nov-22 Training for Repairs Negotiators – online training for resident evaluators
15-16 Oct 22 Repairs Negotiation Sessions – resident evaluators have online meeting with shortlisted bidders to ask 

questions regarding aspects of their submitted bids.
17-Nov-22 Heating ITT training

19 Nov-12 Dec 22 Residents score ITT submissions and questions sent to residents for scoring
14-Dec-22 Residents scores moderated
Jan- Feb 23 ISFT evaluation training and scoring – resident evaluators will receive training to evaluate and score final 

bidders.

Resident 
Involvement 
since June 
2022

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Repairs & Voids and 
Heating Scoring Process

P
age 31



Repairs 
and 
Voids

Split into 2 lots- Lot 1 and Lot 2 

Lot 1 – Covering approx. 70% of stock 
Lot 2 – Covering New Addington, Monks Hill Estate, Fieldway, 
Shrublands and surrounding areas approx. 30% of the stock

Heating Whole Borough

P
age 32



Scoring 
Criteria

Score Rating Criteria for awarding score

5 Excellent
Meets the Council's requirements in all aspects 
and is likely to deliver improvement either through 
innovation or added value

4 Good Meets the Council's requirements in all aspects but 
does not exceed it

3 Satisfactory

Satisfies the requirement. Demonstration by the 
Applicant of the relevant ability, understanding, 
skills, resource and quality measures provided in 
the method statement, with evidence to support 
the response.

2 Unsatisfactory Fails to meet the Council's requirements in the 
majority of aspects but meets in some

1 Poor Significantly fails to meet the Council's 
requirements

0 Failed Completely fails to meet the Council's 
requirements

P
age 33



Housing Repairs & 
Voids 

Evaluation Questions and 
Weighting
Scoring is a 60/40 split- 60% 
Quality, 40% Price

Proposal Area Question Number Page Limit Marks Available

A - Project Delivery

A1 6 10.0

A2 4 2.0

A3 3 1.0

A4 2 2.0

A5 3 2.0

A6 4 pages A4 plus unlimited pages A3 for plan 2.0

A7 3 2.0

B - Resident Care
B1 5 10.0

B2 5 4.0

C - ICT

C1 5 2.0

C2 4 2.0

C3 3 1.0

C4 3 1.0

D - Social Value
D1 N/A 4.0

D2 6 6.0

E - Performance Management and KPIs
E1 N/A Pass/Fail

E2 5 5.0

F - Health and Safety
F1 2 2.0

F2 1 page A4 plus unlimited A3 Risk Register 2.0

G - Contract Amendments G1 0 Not Used

H - TUPE
H1 2 Not Scored

H2 1 Not Scored

Total Score 60.0

P
age 34



Heating

Evaluation questions and 
Weighting

Scoring – 50/50 split – 
50% Quality/50% Price

Proposal Area Question Number Page Limit Marks Available

A - Project Delivery

A1 5 8.0

A2 2 2.0

A3 2 2.0

A4 2 2.0

A5 2 2.0

B - Resident Care
B1 5 8.0

B2 5 3.0

C - ICT

C1 4 2.0

C2 4 2.0

C3 3 1.0

D - Social Value
D1 N/A 4.0

D2 5 6.0

E - Performance Management and KPIs
E1 N/A Pass/Fail

E2 5 4.0

F - Health and Safety
F1 1 2.0

F2 1 2.0

G - TUPE
G1 2 Not Scored

G2 1 Not Scored

Total Score 50.0

P
age 35



Evaluation Questions

Project Delivery – A

A1 - How the delivery of the contract would be Managed

A2 - How Voids will be managed

A3 - How they will ensure the workload fluctuations are managed

A4 – How the AOV commercial Model would be applied

A5 - How Specialist contractors are procured and Managed

A6 – Mobilisation plan details 

Resident Engagement - B

B1. How Resident Engagement and Resident Care would be delivered

B2. How Resident Scrutiny and Monitoring will be managed

P
age 36



ICT Evaluation Questions – C 

C1 – How technology will be used to deliver the requirements of the Term Brief

C2 – How the Interface would set up 

C3 – What Security measures are used

C4 – Road map and mobilisation of the ICT components

Social Value Questions – D

D1 – complete a Social Value Matrix

D2 – Provide a detailed plan of the delivery of Social Value requirements

Performance Management Questions – E 

E1 – Confirmation of KPI targets and schedules 

E2 – How real time performance visibility would be available

P
age 37



Timetable for Contract award

STAGE DATE 

Procurement Board decision 23-Feb-23

Scrutiny Homes Sub-Committee for update 06-Feb-23

Scrutiny Homes Sub-Committee for decision scrutiny 27-Feb-23

Cabinet – for cabinet award decision 06-Mar-23

Contract Signing 25-Apr-23

Mobilisation Commences 01-May-23

Contract Commences 01-Aug-23

P
age 38



 

 

LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON 
REPORT: 
 

 
 SCRUTINY HOMES SUB-COMMITTEE 

DATE OF DECISION 6 February 2023  
REPORT TITLE: 
 

Update on the Housing Revenue Account and Housing General 
Fund budget  

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR / 
DIRECTOR:  
 

SUSMITA SEN, CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF HOUSING 

LEAD OFFICER: VELVET DIBLEY, SENIOR STRATEGY OFFICER 
Email: velvet.dibley@croydon.gov.uk      

LEAD MEMBER: COUNCILLOR LYNNE HALE, DEPUTY MAYOR & CABINET 
MEMBER FOR HOMES 

DECISION TAKER: Not applicable 
CONTAINS EXEMPT 
INFORMATION?  
 
(* See guidance) 
 
 

 NO Public  

WARDS AFFECTED:  
All  

1 SUMMARY OF REPORT 

1.1 The report provides the Scrutiny Homes Sub-Committee with an overview of the 
Housing Revenue Account and General Fund budgets.  

2  RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 For the reasons set out in the report, the Homes Sub-Committee is recommended: 

1. to note the Housing Revenue Account P7 outturn position. 

2. to note the Housing Revenue Account Business Plan key headlines. 

3. to note the Housing General Fund budget. 

4. to note the Housing General Fund P7 outturn position. 

5. to consider its conclusions on the budget information provided, which will be 
submitted to the Scrutiny & Overview Committee meeting on 16 February 2023 as 
part of the wider Budget Scrutiny process.  

2 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 To enable scrutiny of the Housing Revenue Account and Housing General Fund budget 
by the Homes Sub-Committee. 

 

Page 39

Agenda Item 6

mailto:velvet.dibley@croydon.gov.uk


 

 

3 BACKGROUND AND DETAILS 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)  

3.1 The HRA accounts for the revenue expenditure and income relating to the Council’s 
own housing stock and is ring-fenced from the Council’s General Fund as required by 
the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 which specifies the items that can be 
charged and credited to it.  

3.2 The HRA must include all costs and income relating to the Council’s landlord role, and 
the Council has a legal duty to budget to ensure the account remains solvent and is 
reviewed throughout the year.  

3.3 The spending of the HRA must consider the strategic objectives of the Council and the 
impact of government policies on rents, disposals and regeneration. 

3.4 At Month 7, the Housing Revenue Account is forecasting a £4.6m overspend against 
budget at the end of the year. The main pressures remain utility inflation, increases in 
legal disrepair costs and void rents. The work being carried out on the recharges to the 
HRA and will be completed by the end of the financial year, the initial work indicates that 
this will bring this budget to back a balanced position. 

HRA Business Plan 

3.5 The 30-year Business Plan for the Housing Revenue Account will be presented to 
Cabinet on 22 February 2023. The HRA Business Plan details the Council’s investment 
plans in the housing stock which is based upon the current condition of our dwellings.  

3.6 The proposed HRA budget for 2023/24 is based on total income of £96.4m and assumes 
that the rent and tenants service charges will be increased by 7% in line with the 
government-directed cap for the financial year 2023/2024. 

3.7 The HRA Business Plan will demonstrate that the investment proposals are fundable, 
subject to the assumptions within the Plan, and that the HRA remains sustainable and 
viable over the 30-year period.  

3.8 Whilst the HRA Business Plan is for a period of 30 years, more focus is on the first five 
years as there is more certainty on costs, demands, resources and pressures which will 
enable the prioritisation of housing investment. The HRA has a 30-year Business Plan 
that is currently balanced and has been updated to reflect the impact of the latest rent-
setting proposals as well as other agreed increases in expenditure.  

3.9 The HRA Business Plan builds upon the 5% representative sample stock condition 
survey completed in December 2022. The results were extrapolated to form the basis 
of the 2023/24 Capital Programme of £31.476m. A full stock condition survey to assess 
all Council stock began in January 2023 and will inform the HRA Business Plan going 
forward.  

Page 40



 

 

3.10 The budget for the HRA 2023/2024 reflects the work that has been undertaken to review 
the re-charges from the General Fund (GF) to the Housing Revenue Account (HRA). 

3.11 Service level agreements (SLAs) are now in place for the recharges from the General 
Fund to the HRA. Work remains outstanding to ensure that these SLAs are robust and 
properly reflect the needs of the service.  

Housing General Fund  

Table 1 P7 forecast – Housing Options 

 

3.12 At month 7, Housing is forecasting a £3.5m overspend when compared to budget. The 
overspend is largely a result of the ongoing pressure within the emergency 
accommodation area (£2.6m overspend) and other pressures within the longer term 
leased temporary accommodation (£1.2m). The forecast is reflective of the rapidly 
worsening housing market within London including the increase of rents by private 
landlords, movement of private landlords out of the market, and tenants struggling with 
the cost of living.  

3.13 Where no variance is forecast we would expect to make accounting adjustments to 
balance to budget for example carry forward unspent gra 

3.14 There has been a concerted effort to prevent an increase to homelessness 
accommodation costs across London through partnerships with Capital Letters, Sub-
region Authorities and via the agreed Pan-London temporary accommodation rates. 
Nonetheless, demand currently outweighs supply, and several boroughs have recently 
confirmed that they are paying above the agreed Pan-London rates in order to meet 
demand.  

3.15 The Council is a net-importer of homelessness placements. Data from the last three 
years shows that 59% of all placements were made by other boroughs into Croydon. . 
In contrast, only 15% of placements made by the Council were made outside out of 
borough. Boroughs with the highest number of placements in Croydon include 
Wandsworth, Lambeth and Sutton Letters have been issued from the Chief Executive’s 
office to these boroughs in an attempt to reduce this.  

3.16 Transformation projects are underway as part of the Housing Transformation 
Programme which aim to reduce the use of emergency accommodation, increase 

 22/23 Current 
Budget 

 22-23 Grant 
funding 

 Total 22/23 
budget 

 Actual Spend to 
Date (P8) 

P7 Forecast  Variance 
forecast to 
budget 

Housing renewal -75,000 -75,000 287,660 -75,000 0
Allocations 32,000 32,000 183,541 32,000 0
Garage, commercial and miscellaneous properties income -104,000 -104,000 -48,723 -104,000 0
Emergency accommodation 2,319,000 3,327,282 5,646,282 6,767,698 8,218,282 2,572,000
Temporary accommodation and housing solutions 803,000 3,977,000 4,780,000 5,615,278 5,941,000 1,161,000
Homelessness services -243,000 -243,000 52,661 -141,000 102,000
No recourse to public funds 2,326,700 2,326,700 1,234,891 2,046,700 -280,000
Support and accommodation contracts 2,391,000 2,391,000 1,771,517 2,391,000 0
Discretionary support team 673,000 673,000 420,908 638,879 -34,121
Rough sleeping initiative fund 22,000 1,529,352 1,551,352 216,346 1,551,352 0
Housing Options 8,144,700 8,833,634 16,978,334 16,501,779 20,499,213 3,520,879

Page 41



 

 

tenant-move ons into settled housing , and ensure  commercially focused negotiations 
are had with private landlords to improve our property supply.  

Table 2 – DLUHC homelessness grants 2022/23 to 2024/25 

 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

 £ £ £ 
Homelessness Prevention Grant 
(HPG) 7,233,440   7,233,440   7,233,440  
HPG winter top-up 1,166,684    
Domestic Abuse grant 71,282   149,386   216,341  
Rough Sleeping Initiative 1,529,352   1,451,673   1,148,140  
Total 10,000,758   8,834,499   8,597,921  

 

3.17 The pressures on the homeless service are recognised by central government. Grant 
funding is issued in the form of the Homeless Prevention Grant which has existed in 
varying forms since 2017/18. In 2021/22 and 2022/23 additional amounts of around £1m 
were allocated late in the year to fund winter pressures. This grant can used flexibly to 
maximise upstream homelessness prevention to stop vulnerable households from 
becoming homeless, as well as helping to meet temporary accommodation costs. 

3.18 Allocated alongside the Homeless Prevention Grant is the Domestic Abuse Act new 
burdens funding to ensure that local authorities can meet the requirements of the 2021 
legislation to ensure that victims of domestic abuse and their children can access the 
right support in safe accommodation when they need it.   

3.19 The Rough Sleeping Initiative was originally launched in 2018 and was targeted at local 
authorities with the highest numbers of people sleeping rough, based on the 2017 rough 
sleeping snapshot. 

3.20 The initiative seeks to support people sleeping rough off the streets and develop their 
wellbeing and stability, helping to reduce the number of people sleeping rough in both 
the short and longer term. 

3.21 The funding is ringfenced to a programme of work agreed between the DLUHC and 
Croydon and includes funding both staff and accommodation to ensure there are places 
and pathways to help people sleeping rough. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 42



 

 

 

Table 3 – Housing Options budget 2023/24 

 

3.22 It has been identified that inflationary pressures are likely to be experienced in 2023/24 
as the cost of emergency and temporary accommodation is increasing due to rising 
interest rates. It’s been estimated that £2.1m may be required to cover this pressure 
and this has informed the corporate inflationary reserve. 

Table 4 – Housing Options MTFS growth  

 

 

3.23 Amidst the changing market conditions the new management team within the Housing 
directorate have taken over a service with a number of challenges. As no progress was 
made on delivering the 2022/23 savings within 2021/22 s, a reassessment has been 
carried out about the base budget allocation required to support the numbers of 
homeless households based on current demand estimates a £3.286m gap in base 
budget funding. This figure is in line with the P7 forecast overspend of £3.5m.  

3.24 As part of the HRA recharges review, the splits of staff time working in the housing 
department have been assessed and £1.563m of costs will no longer be charged to the 
HRA from the GF in accordance with the Housing Act 1985. 

 

 

 22/23 
Current 
Budget 

 22-23 Grant 
funding  

 Total 22/23 
budget 

 Growth and 
savings 
(base) 

 23/24 grant 
funding 

 Total 23/24 
budget 

Housing renewal -33,000 -33,000 -33,000
Allocations 54,900 54,900 54,900
Garage, commercial and miscellaneous properties income -104,000 -104,000 -104,000
Emergency accommodation 3,302,500 3,256,000 6,558,500 2,544,000 3,323,399 9,169,899
Temporary accommodation and housing solutions 947,200 3,977,000 4,924,200 4,059,324 5,006,524
Homelessness services -102,000 -102,000 -102,000
No recourse to public funds 2,326,700 2,326,700 2,326,700
Support and accommodation contracts 2,391,000 2,391,000 2,391,000
Discretionary support team 673,000 673,000 673,000
Rough sleeping initiative fund 22,000 1,529,352 1,551,352 1,451,673 1,473,673
Housing Options 9,478,300 8,762,352 18,240,652 2,544,000 8,834,396 20,856,696

 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 

Description £000 £000 £000 £000 
Incremental/New growth identified in the 
2023/24 Medium Term Financial Plan     
Fund base budget 3,286     
HRA recharges staffing corrections 1,563     

 4,849  0  0  0  

Page 43



 

 

 

Table 5 – Housing Options MTFS Savings  

 

3.25 Table 5 shows the draft MTFS savings programme for 2023/24 budget setting. The 
key to delivering the level of transformation and saving required is the total £1.25m 
restructure saving to deliver across 2023/24 and 2024/25 as £0.625m each year. This 
will put the department in a position to work more effectively and focus on preventing 
households from becoming homeless wherever possible.   

3.26 Table 5 also shows a number of other savings lines focusing on making effective use 
of emergency and temporary accommodation.   

3.27 This focused savings programme, alongside the implementation of a new housing 
system, NEC, will allow the department to move into 2024/25 on a strong footing to 
make the operational changes required to address the current overspend position and 
also ensure that households presenting as homeless have a clearly defined pathway 
of support and can access the help they need. 

 

2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

Description £000 £000 £000 £000

Housing Needs restructure 
including Dynamic Purchasing 
System implementation

-625 -625 

Temporary Accommodation 
occupancy checks -400 -300 

Temporary Accommdation 
case review (discretionary 
cases)

-600 -450 

Data cleanse & rent accounts 
(income collection) -300 -200 

Repurpose general needs 
voids for emergency 
accommodation

-175 -175 

Vacancy factor -302 
Demand Management -239 -414 

Housing Association liaison, 
recharges and nominations -78 

-2,305 -1,989 -589 0

Incremental/New savings identified in the 2023/24 Medium Term Financial Plan

Transformation Projects

Page 44



 

 

LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON 
REPORT: 
 

 HOMES SUB-COMMITTEE 
  
 

DATE OF DECISION 6 February 2023 
 

REPORT TITLE: 
 

WORK PROGRAMME 2022-23 

CORPORATE DIRECTOR 
/ DIRECTOR:  
 

Stephen Lawrence-Orumwense, Director of Legal 
Services 

 
 

LEAD OFFICER: Simon Trevaskis, Senior Democratic Services & 
Governance Officer  

Email: simon.trevaskis@croydon.gov.uk     
Telephone: Extn:27207     

 
LEAD MEMBER:   Cllr Leila Ben-Hassel, Chair of Homes Sub-Committee 

 
AUTHORITY TO TAKE 
DECISION: 

The Health & Social Care Sub-Committee is able to review 
and suggest updates to its work programme.  

 
KEY DECISION?  No REASON: Not applicable  
CONTAINS EXEMPT 
INFORMATION?  

No Grounds for the exemption: Not Applicable  

 
WARDS AFFECTED: 

 
ALL 

  

1 SUMMARY OF REPORT 

1.1 This agenda item details the Sub-Committee’s work programme for the 
2022/23 municipal year. 

1.2 The Sub-Committee has the opportunity to discuss any amendments or 
additions that it wishes to make to the work programme. 

1.3 The Sub-Committee is able to propose changes to its work programme, 
but in line with Constitution, the final decision on any changes to any of 
the Committee/Sub-Committee work programmes rests with the Chairs & 
Vice-Chairs Group, following consultation with officers. 

2 RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 The Homes Sub-Committee is recommended: 

1 Note the most recent version of its Work Programme, as presented in the report.  

2 Consider whether there are any other items that should be provisionally added to 
the work programme as a result of the discussions held during the meeting. 

Page 45

Agenda Item 7



 

 

3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1 Regularly reviewing its work programme provides an opportunity for the Sub-
Committee to ensure it is focussed on high priority issues affecting the services 
provided to residents. 

2. WORK PROGRAMME 
2.1 The proposed work programme is attached at Appendix 1. 
2.2 Members are asked to note that the lines of enquiry for some items have yet to be 

confirmed and that there are opportunities to add further items to the work 
programme. 

  Additional Scrutiny Topics 
2.3 Members of the Sub-Committee are invited to suggest any other items that they 

consider appropriate for the Work Programme. However, due to the time 
limitations at Committee meetings, it is suggested that no proposed agenda 
contain more than two items of substantive business in order to allow effective 
scrutiny of items already listed. 
Participation in Scrutiny 

2.4 Members of the Sub-Committee are also requested to give consideration to 
any persons that it wishes to attend future meetings to assist in the 
consideration of agenda items. This may include Cabinet Members, Council or 
other public agency officers or representatives of relevant communities. 

Appendices 

APPENDIX 1: Work Programme 2022/23 for the Homes Sub-Committee. 
 

Page 46



Updated: 27 January 2023 

Appendix 1 

Homes Sub-Committee 

The below table sets out the working version of the Homes Sub-Committee work programme.  

Meeting 
Date 

Item Scope Directorate & Lead Officer 

HRA Business Plan & 
Rent Setting 

Pre-Decision Scrutiny: Cabinet consideration due on 22 February 
2023. 
HRA Rent Setting report due to Cabinet on 25 January  

Housing 
Susmita Sen 

6 February 
2023 

Non-HRA Housing 
Budget Overview 

To review the non-HRA budget proposals in order to feed into the 
Budget Scrutiny process.   

Housing 
Susmita Sen 

27 
February 
2023 

Responsive Repairs 
Contract 

Pre-Decision: To scrutinise the process used to award the new 
contract and the implementation plan. 

Housing 
Stephen Tate 

 Update on Regina 
Road 

To receive an update on the work to review the future of the blocks on 
Regina Road 

Housing 
Susmita Sen 

 Update on the delivery 
of the Transformation 
Programme 

To receive an update on the delivery of the Transformation 
programme, including the development of a Housing Strategy. 

Housing 
Susmita Sen 

 

P
age 47



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	Minutes

	5 Update on the Re-procurement of Repairs/Voids and Heating
	Appendix 1: Residents Involvement
	Appendix 2: Repairs & Voids and Heating Scoring Process

	6 Update on the Housing Revenue Account and Housing General Fund Budget
	7 Work Programme 2022/23
	2.	WORK PROGRAMME
	2.1	The proposed work programme is attached at Appendix 1.
	2.2	Members are asked to note that the lines of enquiry for some items have yet to be confirmed and that there are opportunities to add further items to the work programme.
	Additional Scrutiny Topics
	Participation in Scrutiny

	Appendix 1 - Homes Sub-Committee Work Programme


